
 
 

 
i 

 
Cambridge City Council 

Licensing Sub-Committee 

 

Date:  Monday, 18 December 2017 

Time:  10.00 am 

Venue:  Committee Room 1 & 2, The Guildhall, Market Square, Cambridge, 
CB2 3QJ 

Contact:   democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk, tel:01223 457013 
 
Agenda 
 

1    Appointment of a Chair  

2    Declarations of Interest  

3    Meeting Procedure  

4    Private Hire Operators Licence Renewal Application (Pages 5 - 132) 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 
ii 

 

Licensing Sub Committee Members: Councillors Benstead, Bird, and 
T. Moore  

 

Information for the public 

The public may record (e.g. film, audio, tweet, blog) meetings which are open 
to the public. For details go to: 
www.cambridge.gov.uk/have-your-say-at-committee-meetings 

For full information about committee meetings, committee reports, councillors 
and the democratic process:  

 Website: http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk  

 Email: democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk 

 Phone: 01223 457013 

http://www.cambridge.gov.uk/have-your-say-at-committee-meetings
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk


 

 
iii 

Licensing Sub-Committee: Taxi Applications Hearings Procedure  
 

The City Council is the licensing authority for Hackney Carriages and Private 
Hire Vehicles within the City of Cambridge.  The Licensing Team of the City 
Council is responsible for all licensing matters and an “Officer” is a manager 
or member of that team. 

 
The Hearing   

 
1.  Present at the hearing will be members of the Licensing Sub-Committee, 
the Officer and a Legal Officer who will be the Sub-Committee’s legal adviser. 
A Committee Manager may also be present. 

 
2.  At the start of the hearing the Chair of the Sub-Committee will open the 
meeting, introduce the members of the committee and officers present and 
explain the procedure to be followed. 
 
3.  The Officer will outline the report and present any information considered 
relevant in relation to the case. 

 
4.  Members may ask any relevant questions of the Officer. 

 
5.  The Chair will invite the applicant or her/his representative to ask any 
questions of the Officer. 

 
6.  The Chair will invite the applicant or a representative to put the applicant’s 
case to the committee.  The Chair will have discretion to determine whether 
the committee will hear from additional speakers.  

 
7. Members may ask any relevant questions of the applicant and/or her/his 
witnesses.   

 
8.  The Officer may ask any relevant questions to clarify the information that 
has been given.  

 
9.  When all the information has been offered, the Chair will invite all parties 
to summarise their points if they wish. 

 
10.  The Chair will ask all parties if they are satisfied that they have had the 
opportunity to say everything that they wish to say. 

 
11.  The Chair will invite the Legal Adviser to the Sub Committee to give any 
legal advice that the Adviser considers to be appropriate. 

 



 

 
iv 

12.  If the Sub-Committee wish to consider their decision in private, everyone, 
except the members of the Sub-Committee, will be asked to leave the room; 
alternatively the Sub-Committee will withdraw to another room.  The Sub-
Committee may invite the Legal Adviser to join them.  Any legal advice given 
to the Sub-Committee when they are withdrawn will be reported back to the 
hearing before the Chair resumes it. 

 
13.  The Sub-Committee may reconvene the meeting in order to seek 
clarification of the facts. 

 
14.  When the decision has been made the Chair will announce this to the 
applicant. 

 
The Decision 

 
15.  Following the hearing the Council will write to the applicant with formal 
notification of the decision of the Sub-Committee and informing the applicant 
of any right to appeal to the Magistrates Court and the time within which 
appeals must be submitted. 

 



 

 
Report page no. 1 Agenda page no. 

 

Item  

FIRST RENEWAL OF OPERATOR LICENCE 

 

 

1. Introduction  

 
1.1    The purpose of this report is to consider the first renewal of the private hire 

Operator’s licence held by Uber Britannia Limited. An application to renew the 
licence was made by Uber Britannia Limited on 7th November 2017. A copy of the 
application form is attached to the report as Appendix A. 

 
1.2 The application is classed as a first renewal application, which is for any Operator 

wishing to renew the licence at the expiry of the first year of holding the licence. An 
Operator will need to demonstrate that they have been operating a private hire 
business for the full duration of the licence (one year). The matter will then be 
referred to Licensing Sub-Committee who will then review the matter to determine 
whether the applicant is a fit and proper person(s) to hold an operator’s licence. 

 
1.3 The applicant has requested an Operator’s licence to be granted for five years. 

To:  

Taxi Licensing Sub-Committee 

Report by:  

Luke Catchpole, Technical Officer  

Tel: 01223 457818  Email: luke.catchpole@cambridge.gov.uk 

Wards affected:  

All 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 
Report page no. 2 Agenda page no. 

 

 

 

2.  Recommendation 

2.1  It is recommended that Members consider the information contained in this report, 

any representations made to them and the legislative provisions and policy 

considerations detailed in paragraphs 4 and 5 below, and determine whether Uber 

Britannia Limited is “fit and proper” to continue to be a licensed private hire operator 

by Cambridge City Council. 

2.2 If Members consider Uber Britannia to be fit and proper and decide to grant the 

renewal of the operator’s licence, Members can decide to grant it for a period of one 

year, five years or for any other time period that is deemed appropriate. 

3.  Background 

Page: 2 

  

3.1 Uber Britannia Limited first applied for a Private Hire Operator’s Licence on 26th 
November 2015 and was issued with the licence on 21st December 2015 for a 
period of one year.  
 

3.2 Due to the operator not having traded under the initial licence for a whole year, the 
subsequent renewal application was treated as a new application. The licence was 
issued on 21st December 2016 for a period of one year. The current licence, 
PHO080 is attached to the report as Appendix B. 
 

3.3 An application to renew the current licence for 5 years was received from Uber 
Britannia Limited on 7th November 2017 (Appendix A). In accordance with the 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Handbook (Appendix P, Page 153) this 
application is classed as a first renewal as Uber have been operating under the 
current licence for only one full year. The current licence expires on 20th December 
2017.  
 

3.4 When the first application was made references were provided for Tom Elvidge and 
an enhanced DBS check was also provided.  
 

3.5 Tom Elvidge and Fred Jones have both had their DBS checks carried out via the 
update service as part of this application. Both DBS checks came back with no 
information. 
 

3.6 Uber do not carry out DBS checks or medicals before allowing drivers to drive for 
Uber. However all drivers licensed by Cambridge City Council will have an 
enhanced DBS check carried out every three years and procedures are in place for 
Cambridge City Council to deal with any information that is provided on the DBS 
check. All licensed drivers with Cambridge City Council will also have medicals 
carried out as per Cambridge City Council’s policy. 
 

Page 6



 
Report page no. 3 Agenda page no. 

 

 

3.7 Any driver and vehicle licensed by Cambridge City Council will go through the same 
application process as set out in Cambridge City Council’s Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Licensing Policy and Cambridge City Council’s Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Taxi Handbook. 
 

3.8 As there are no set national guidelines around the licensing of drivers and vehicles, 
we are unable to comment on the steps that drivers licensed by other authorities 
have to take in order to become a licensed driver and to get their vehicle licensed or 
the conditions that they must adhere to in respect of that licence.  
 

3.9 Uber Britannia Limited holds Operator licences with 42 other local authorities. Tom 
Elvidge holds Operator licences with 7 local authorities and Fred Jones holds 
Operator licences with 12 local authorities. Details of which can be found on pages 
21 to 23 of Appendix A. 
 

3.10 Uber Britannia Limited has had two applications for an Operator’s licence refused 
by Reading Borough Council and Swansea City & County Council (SCCC). The 
reasons are provided on page 24 of Appendix A. 
 

3.11 On 22 September 2017 Uber London Limited had an application to renew their 
Operator licence in London refused by Transport for London (TfL). This decision is 
currently under appeal. The statement issued by TfL in regards to this decision is 
attached to the report as Appendix C. 
 

3.12 Since November 2016, we have received 6 complaints regarding Uber as an 
operator. Five of these were received on the 15th and 16th November 2016, which 
was when Uber vehicles first appeared in Cambridge. The complaints related to 
how the bookings were made and whether the triple lock process was being 
adhered to. Investigations carried out by the Licensing enforcement officers 
concluded that Uber was acting correctly. The 6th complaint was received on 17th 
March 2017 and related to drivers licensed by The City of Wolverhampton Council 
working for Uber within Cambridge. The complaint was looked into and it was 
concluded that as long as the triple check process was being followed, which it was, 
there was no action that could be taken.  
 

3.13 Further complaints have been received regarding vehicles licensed by other 
authorities working for Uber not displaying licence plates or door signs. Each local 
authority sets different conditions and not all require door signs to be displayed. In 
regards to vehicles licensed by TfL, they must display a roundel style logo in both 
the front and rear windscreens. These complaints have been forwarded on or have 
been sent to the local authority responsible for the licensing of the vehicle. 
Cambridge City Council can also take action against the driver of the vehicle if 
evidence is received that they are working as a private hire driver and not displaying 
their licence plates. No action has been taken against any driver in regards to these 
alleged offences by Cambridge City Council but Uber Britannia Limited have been 
informed and suspended vehicles from the app until that vehicle is displaying the 
correct licence plates. 
 

3.14 One complaint has been received in regards to an Uber vehicle and driver licensed 
by Cambridge City Council not displaying door signs. Uber Britannia Limited were 
informed of this complaint and the vehicle was suspended from the app (meaning 

Page 7



 
Report page no. 4 Agenda page no. 

 

 

he was no longer able to access jobs through Uber) until the door signs were in 
place. The vehicle in question started displaying the correct door signs and was 
able to take jobs through the Uber App. 
 

3.15 No complaints have been made to Cambridge City Council from members of the 
public in regards to journeys taken in Uber vehicles. 

 
3.16 At the time of the inspection, Uber Britannia Limited currently uses 4 private hire 

vehicles and drivers licensed by Cambridge City Council.  
 

3.17 An inspection of the Operator’s base was carried out on 8th November 2017 by 
Karen O’Connor, Team Manager (Commercial & Licensing) and Luke Catchpole, 
Technical Officer. A copy of the inspection form is attached to the report as 
Appendix D.  

 
3.18 The relevant findings of the inspection were as follows: 

 
- Question 6 (d) on the application form indicated that bookings could be taken via 

the website. The inspection clarified that this was an error and bookings can 
only be made via the app. 

- The booking process was explained in detail (page 4 of inspection form) and the 
operator confirmed that Uber Britannia Limited invites the booking, accepts the 
booking and that the contract is with Uber Britannia. 

- A condition of the operating licence is that the operator must ensure that every 
vehicle working under their operator licence is covered by a valid certificate of 
insurance and a valid certificate of compliance and a record of this must be 
maintained. At the inspection, Uber Britannia were able to show valid certificates 
of insurance for all vehicles working under their operator licence but did not hold 
copies of valid certificates of compliance for any of the 4 vehicles. Uber Britannia 
was not aware of the need to do this and stated that they will contact the vehicle 
owners and get this information from them and add it to their records. Any 
vehicle that does not provide this information will not appear on the app until it is 
provided. All certificates of compliance have been received and added to the 
operator’s records. Uber have also provided assurances that they will continue 
to do this going forward. 

- Should the insurance cover for any vehicle working under the Operator’s licence 
be cancelled, suspended or lapse then the vehicle must be immediately stood 
down and Cambridge City Council notified of this immediately. Uber have 
processes in place to suspend any vehicle without valid insurance from its app 
but were not aware of the need to inform the Council. After the inspection they 
are now aware of that need and will be informing the Council when necessary.  

- The list of staff provided in the application form was added to at the inspection 
and a print out of ancillary staff was provided. This is attached to the report as 
Appendix E. 

- Drivers receive a presentation that covers the use of the app and regulatory 
information that drivers must adhere to. A copy of the presentation is attached to 
the report as Appendix F. Uber also provides an electronic safeguarding e 
module produced by Barnardo’s that drivers can access if they so wish. A copy 
of this is attached to the report as Appendix G. 

Page 8



 
Report page no. 5 Agenda page no. 

 

 

- Uber were able to provide all information relating to bookings and record 
keeping of journeys undertaken on the operator’s licence issued by Cambridge 
City Council at the inspection. As part of enforcement work carried out by the 
licensing team, a test purchase was made via the app. Officers found that the 
bookings were recorded in the correct manner. 

- Uber has a complaints procedure in place. A record of complaints received over 
the last 12 months has been provided and is attached to the report as Appendix 
H. None of the complaints were forwarded on to Cambridge City Council and 
this was discussed at the inspection. Going forward, Uber will forward all 
relevant complaints to the Council when received. Discussions will take place 
between the Council and Uber to confirm what relevant complaints are.  

- A valid copy of public liability insurance was seen at the inspection. This expires 
on 29th June 2018. 

- A first renewal application requires the operator to demonstrate that they have 
been operating for a whole year. Uber have provided copies of bookings for 
journeys taken under their Cambridge City Council operator licence for the first 
week of every month, beginning with December 2016. A copy of this can be 
provided if members wish to view it. 

 
3.19   The issues found at the inspection regarding certificates of compliance, insurance 

and the forwarding of complaints that have been mentioned in 3.18 were 
discussed at the visit and there has been further dialogue with the Operator 
since. The Commercial & Licensing team is working on developing a process on 
how all Operators should report gaps in insurance and relevant complaints 
received to the Council. 

 
3.20 Two letters objecting to the renewal of the Operator’s licence have been received 

from Panther Taxis Ltd and a joint response from Cambridge City Licensed Taxis 
(CCLT) and Cambridge Hackney & Private Hire Association (CHPHA). The 
responses are attached to the report as Appendix J. 

 
3.21 Fred Jones of Uber has sent in an email in response to the data breach that 

affected Uber. The email has been attached to the report as Appendix K. 

4. Legislative Provisions 

 
4.1 In making their decision, Members must give consideration to section 62 of the 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions Act) 1976 which states: 
. 
“Suspension and Revocation of operators’ licences. 
 
(1) Notwithstanding anything in this Part of this Act a district council may suspend 

or revoke, or (on application therefor under section 55 of this Act) refuse to 
renew an operator’s licence on any of the following grounds:– 

 
(a) any offence under, or non-compliance with, the provisions of this Part of 

this Act; 

Page 9



 
Report page no. 6 Agenda page no. 

 

 

(b) any conduct on the part of the operator which appears to the district 
council to render him unfit to hold an operator’s licence; 

(c) any material change since the licence was granted in any of the 
circumstances of the operator on the basis when the licence was 
granted; or 

(d) any other reasonable cause 
 

(2)  Where a district council suspend, revoke or refuse to renew any licence under 
this section they shall give to the operator notice of the grounds on which the 
licence has been suspended or revoked or on which they have refused to 
renew such licence within fourteen days of such suspension, revocation or 

refusal. 
(3) Any operator aggrieved by a decision of a district council under this section may 

appeal to a magistrates court. 

5. Policy Considerations 
 

5.1  Section 55 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 require a local 
authority to be satisfied that an applicant for a private hire operator’s licence is a “fit 
and proper person to hold an operator’s licence”. A definition of what could 
constitute “fit and proper” is provided by Bingham LCJ in McCool v Rushcliffe 
Borough Council [1998] 3 All 889, QBD: “….those licensed to drive private hire 
vehicles are suitable to do so, namely that they are safe drivers with good driving 
records and adequate experience, sober, mentally and physically fit, honest and not 
persons who would take advantage of their employment to abuse or assault 
passengers”. This definition relates to a driver of a taxi, not an operator but the 
general views could be used when determining whether an operator is “fit and 
proper”.  

6. Options 

6.1  The Authority has a duty to ensure that a safe and secure ‘taxi’ service is available 

to the public. 

6.2  Every case should be dealt with on its own merits, and after consideration of any 

representations from the applicant and his referees, the following options are 

available to the Sub-Committee: 

1. Renew the Operator’s licence for the standard 1 year or 5 year period. 
2. Renew the Operator’s licence for a limited duration up to 5 years. 
3. Renew the Operator’s licence with additional conditions. A list of potential 

conditions is attached to the report as Appendix I. These are only proposals and 
members can decide to utilise all of them, some of them or none. It is also not 
an exhaustive list and members can add further conditions if so minded.  

4. Refuse the renewal. This carries a Right of Appeal to Magistrates Court 
 
If members choose option 4 they must be satisfied that Uber Britannia Limited has 
behaved in a manner that renders them not a “fit and proper person” to continue to 

Page 10



 
Report page no. 7 Agenda page no. 

 

 

hold an Operator’s licence and give their reasons. Members are required to give 
their reasons for any decision reached. 

7. Conclusion 

7.1  Uber Britannia Limited was first issued with a private hire Operator’s licence by 

Cambridge City Council on 21st December 2015, and has utilised this Operator’s 

licence by providing relevant services since November 2016. The current licence 

expires on 20th December 2017 and the applicant has requested an Operator’s 

licence to be granted for 5 years. Having examined all the facts presented in this 

case, members are asked to determine the issue by choosing one of the options 

outlined in section 6. 

7.2  Members may give their decision at the hearing and, in any event, Uber Britannia 

Limited will be informed of the decision in writing as soon as possible.  Any appeal 

must be lodged with the Magistrates Court within 21 days of receipt of the 

notification of the decision. 

8. Background Papers 
Town Police Clauses Act 1847 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
Cambridge City Council Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy  
Cambridge City Council Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Taxi Handbook 

 
9. Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Application form 
Appendix B – Current PHO Licence 
Appendix C – TfL statement 
Appendix D – Inspection Form 
Appendix E – Ancillary Staff List 
Appendix F – Driver presentation 
Appendix G – Barnardo’s safeguarding training 
Appendix H – Record of complaints 
Appendix I – Proposed conditions to be placed on the licence 
Appendix J – Response to renewal application 
Appendix K – Email from Fred Jones regarding data breach 

Inspection of papers 

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report please contact:  

Luke Catchpole, Technical Officer, tel: 01223 457818  

email: luke.catchpole@cambridge.gov.uk. 

Page 11

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/Vict/10-11/89/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1976/57/contents


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

Page 13



APPENDIX A

Page 14



APPENDIX A

Page 15



APPENDIX A

Page 16



APPENDIX A

Page 17



APPENDIX A

Page 18



APPENDIX A

Page 19



APPENDIX A

Page 20



APPENDIX A

Page 21



APPENDIX A

Page 22



APPENDIX A

Page 23



APPENDIX A

Page 24



APPENDIX A

Page 25



APPENDIX A

Page 26



APPENDIX A

Page 27



APPENDIX A

Page 28



APPENDIX A

Page 29



APPENDIX A

Page 30



APPENDIX A

Page 31



Appendix 5d) - Office Equipment

GLH Room: 136, Ground Floor Office Space: 230,1st Floor room 
2 Flat Screen TVs with remote 3 dell desktop screen 
High Top Desk 4 multi-plug extension lead
Black high chair 3 brown desk 
2 brown wooden drawers 3 desk chairs 
1 clear plastic drawers 1 roundtable
2 desks small fridge 
14 foldable black chairs microwave
iPad stand with iPad 1 cupboard 
Information display stand 3 desk drawers
1 white board 2 desk phones 
2 desk chairs 2 iPad stands
15 popper wallets 1 printer 
18 black Clipboard 1 camera and black box 
2 HDMI to laptop cable 1 for Dell and 1 for Apple 1 fan
Board Marker & eraser 3 black foldable chairs
2 multi-plug extension lead 1 fire blanket 
1 desk phone 1 first aid kit 
4 A1 canvas 2 box of paper 
Operators Licence Framed 2 laminator 
Insurance Framed 1 toaster 
Camera 1 kettle 

4 uber t-shirts
3 apple mac mice 
3 apple mac keyboards
4 ghost laptop stand 
2 pack of A4 laminated sheets 
1 pack of A3 laminated sheet 
Markers 
2 iPads 
6 packs of multicoloured ink
1 whiteboard
3 uber photo phones 
1 amazon firestick
1 plug-in heater
1 A-B Uber poster 
1 HDMI to laptop mac cable 
pens 
speakers
coat hanger 
Phone chargers , apple and samsung

APPENDIX A

Page 32



Licence Holder: Uber Britannia Ltd.

Licensing Authority First Licence Issue Date Current Licence Issue Date Current Licence Expiry Date
Birmingham City Council 06/02/2015 01/02/2017 05/02/2018
City of Wolverhampton Council 11/05/2016 11/05/2017 10/05/2022
Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council 12/05/2015 12/05/2015 11/05/2021
Brighton & Hove City Council 05/11/2015 05/11/2015 04/11/2017
Chichester District Council 14/12/2016 14/12/2016 13/12/2021
Lewes District Council 01/02/2017 13/02/2017 12/02/2022
Cambridge City Council 21/12/2015 21/12/2016 20/12/2017
South Cambridgeshire District Council 09/12/2015 19/10/2017 08/12/2021
Newport City Council 16/08/2016 16/08/2016 15/08/2021
The City of Cardiff Council 23/12/2015 19/09/2016 22/12/2020
Edinburgh City Council 07/03/2016 24/03/2017 19/03/2018
Glasgow City Council 27/05/2015 01/06/2016 31/05/2019
City of York Council 23/12/2015 24/12/2016 23/12/2017
Leicester City Council 02/04/2015 02/04/2016 01/04/2021
Guildford Borough Council 06/07/2017 06/07/2017 05/07/2022
Reigate and Banstead Borough Council 30/05/2015 30/04/2017 29/04/2018
Slough Borough Council 27/04/2015 27/04/2016 26/04/2021
Uttlesford District Council 21/12/2015 21/12/2015 30/11/2020
Bolton Metropolitan Borough Council 26/03/2015 26/03/2015 25/03/2021
Bury, Metropolitan Borough of 07/03/2015 23/03/2017 22/03/2018
Cheshire East Council 25/11/2015 25/11/2015 25/11/2020
Manchester City Council 01/02/2014 27/08/2016 31/07/2021
Oldham Council 25/03/2015 25/03/2016 24/03/2021
Rochdale Borough Council 26/04/2015 13/10/2017 25/04/2021
Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council 15/09/2015 01/09/2017 31/08/2018
Trafford Council 01/11/2014 01/11/2015 31/10/2020
Wigan Council 14/10/2015 14/10/2015 13/10/2020
Cheshire West & Chester 30/05/2017 30/05/2017 29/05/2022
Knowsley Metropolitan Borough Council 21/10/2015 21/10/2016 04/11/2021
Liverpool City Council 24/11/2016 24/11/2016 23/11/2021
Sefton Council 19/06/2015 19/06/2016 18/06/2021
Wirral Council 26/11/2015 26/11/2015 25/11/2020
Durham County Council 09/01/2017 09/01/2017 08/01/2022
Newcastle City Council 24/02/2015 24/02/2016 23/02/2021
Derby City Council 13/12/2016 13/12/2016 13/12/2021
Fareham Borough Council 16/12/2015 16/12/2015 30/04/2020
Portsmouth City Council 18/01/2015 18/01/2016 31/01/2021
Southampton City Council 01/02/2016 01/02/2016 31/12/2021
Bristol City Council 03/01/2015 03/01/2016 02/01/2021
Swindon Borough Council 25/11/2016 25/11/2016 25/11/2017
Newcastle-Under-Lyme Borough Council 22/02/2016 22/02/2016 21/02/2019
Stoke-on-Trent City Council 14/08/2015 14/08/2015 13/08/2018

APPENDIX A

Page 33



Licence Holder: Tom Elvidge

Licensing Authority First Licence Issue Date Current Licence Issue Date Current Licence Expiry Date
Kirklees Metropolitan Borough Council 03/02/2015 10/02/2016 03/03/2022
Leeds City Council 09/11/2014 09/11/2016 12/11/2017
Wakefield Council 20/02/2015 20/02/2016 19/02/2021
Aylesbury Vale District Council 18/05/2016 18/05/2016 17/05/2021
Luton Borough Council 17/06/2015 12/04/2016 31/03/2021
Windsor and Maidenhead, The Royal Borough of Council30/03/2015 30/03/2016 29/03/2021
Wycombe District Council 08/03/2016 30/06/2016 30/04/2021

APPENDIX A

Page 34



Licence Holder: Fred Jones

Licensing Authority First Licence Issue Date Current Licence Issue Date Current Licence Expiry Date
Bradford Metropolitan Borough Council 01/05/2015 24/10/2017 25/10/2022
Calderdale Council 14/03/2016 15/03/2017 14/03/2022
Woking Borough Council 16/02/2016 04/05/2017 16/02/2018
Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council 14/06/2014 01/12/2016 30/11/2021
Christchurch Borough Council 01/06/2017 25/05/2017 24/05/2022
Gosport Borough Council 22/12/2015 22/12/2015 23/12/2020
Havant Borough Council 19/01/2016 19/01/2016 18/01/2021
New Forest District Council 12/05/2016 12/05/2016 30/04/2021
Borough of Poole 01/06/2017 21/06/2017 30/06/2022
Bath and North East Somerset Council 01/11/2015 01/11/2016 31/10/2021
North Somerset Council 12/10/2015 12/10/2015 11/10/2018
South Gloucestershire Council 22/06/2015 21/07/2017 22/07/2022

APPENDIX A

Page 35



Appendix - Suspended/Revoked/Refused Licences 
 
Uber Britannia Ltd’s application for an operator licence was refused by Reading Borough 
Council (RBC) in March 2016. The reasons given were not relevant to this current 
application, being related to peculiar requirements in RBC’s local licence conditions and 
other irrelevant concerns around local demand and the number of vehicles that will be 
operated in that area. 
 
Uber Britannia Ltd’s application for an operator licence with Swansea City & County 
Council (SCCC) was made alongside a request for an exemption to one of the conditions. 
Condition 22 requires the operator to check all vehicles before the start of each shift. Uber 
do not assign shifts to licensed private hire drivers who use our app. As independent 
contractors, partner-drivers who use the app have the flexibility to switch the app on/off as 
they see fit, with many enjoying the flexibility of having no set shifts or minimum hours. It was 
also put forward by the Team Leader of the Swansea Licensing team that the purpose of this 
requirement is already adequately met by the driver’s licence conditions. The exemption was 
not granted by the Licensing committee and in September 2017 the application was 
subsequently not successful. 
 
TfL refused Uber London Limited's application to renew its PHO licence - this decision is 
currently under appeal. 

APPENDIX A

Page 36



Appendix 5 q) & 5 t)APPENDIX A

P
age 37



 
 

Uber Britannia Limited 
Compass House 
Vision Park 
Chivers Way 
Histon 
Cambridge, CB24 9AD 

 
By Hand 

3 November 2017 
 

 
To Whom It May Concern, 
 
I write in response to question 5 s) of the Cambridge City Council renewal application, which 
asks: 
 
“Do  you intend to operate any surge pricing  as part of the fare structure?”, “If yes, please 

explain  details of the surge pricing  to be  used”, and  “If yes, and  you intend to use Hackney 

Carriage Vehicles to fulfil bookings, please  explain  how  you will  ensure that passengers will  not 

be  overcharged”. 

 

When vehicle supply is restricted, Uber uses surge pricing to ensure that passengers are able to 
get a ride reliably and quickly. Uber always informs riders that surge pricing is in effect; if 
relevant, the app displays the current surge rate along with the fare estimate and the rider will 
be required to accept the rate prior to requesting a ride. In this way we ensure the pricing 
structure is as transparent as possible. 
 
Uber does not permit Hackney Carriages to fulfil bookings within their licensed district on the 
Uber app, which ensures that it is not possible for them to fall foul of s.58 of the Town Police 
Clauses Act 1847. 
 
I am at your disposal if you have any questions. 
  
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
 
 
Frederick Jones 
Head of Cities¸ UK and Ireland, Uber 
Enc. 

                       
                       

 
1 
 

APPENDIX A

Page 38



 
 

Uber Britannia Limited 
Compass House 
Vision Park 
Chivers Way 
Histon 
Cambridge, CB24 9AD 

 
By Hand 

3 November 2017 
 

 
To Whom It May Concern, 
 
I write in response to question 5 u) of the Cambridge City Council renewal application, which 
asks: 
 
“Are  you registered with the Information Commissioner’s Office on  the Data protection Public 

Register?” 

 
I can confirm that Uber Britannia Limited is not a data controller for the purposes of the Data 
Protection Act 1998 and therefore is not registered with the Information Commissioner’s Office. 
The data controller for the purposes of data protection is Uber B.V., a company incorporated in 
the Netherlands, and we can confirm that it is registered with the ‘Autoriteit Persoonsgegevens’, 
which is the Dutch equivalent of the ICO.  
 
I am at your disposal if you have any questions. 
  
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
 
 
 
Frederick Jones 
Head of Cities¸ UK and Ireland, Uber 
Enc. 

                       
                       

 
1 
 

APPENDIX A

Page 39



 
 

Uber Britannia Limited 
Compass House 
Vision Park 
Chivers Way 
Histon 
Cambridge, CB24 9AD 

 
By Hand 

3 November 2017 
 

 
To Whom It May Concern, 
 
I write in response to question 6 d) of the Cambridge City Council renewal application, which 
asks for further detail regarding acceptance of bookings via a mobile app. 
 
 

Question Answer 

Who will invite the booking? Uber Britannia Limited (“UBL”) invites the 
booking via the Uber app, which is configured 
for the local jurisdiction. UBL is responsible 
for ensuring that drivers available for 
bookings are properly licensed and insured 
and dispatches bookings to drivers.  
 

Who will accept the booking? UBL accepts the booking as the licensed 
private hire operator. 
 

Where are bookings received to? Bookings are received electronically and 
processed under UBL’s Cambridge operator 
licence. 
 
For the avoidance of doubt, there is no 
requirement in the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 for the 
booking to be accepted in any particular 
geographic location, or for a booking to ‘land’ 
at the licensed premises within the district. 
 

                       
                       

 
1 
 

APPENDIX A

Page 40



 
 

Does the booking remain a contract with the 
operator and not direct with the driver? 

UBL, as the licensed private hire operator, 
accepts the booking and accepts all 
regulatory responsibilities and burdens that 
arise. However, UBL does not itself provide 
transportation services, and is not a 
transportation provider. UBL acts as agent of 
drivers who provide transportation services 
as principal, in common with a number of 
other private hire operators. 
 

Where are the servers that store/process 
booking records based? 

Uber - like all modern businesses - uses 
cloud based technology for security and 
safety reasons. UBL does not have a local 
server and there is no requirement for it to 
have one under the 1976 Act. All booking 
records are stored electronically and 
available to the Authority on demand.  
 

How is a booking given to a driver? The booking system works in the following 
way:  
The Uber rider opens the Uber app, selects 
their pick up location and presses the 
“request” button.  The rider also has the 
option at this stage to enter their intended 
destination and to ask for a fare estimate. 
Based on the rules set by the relevant 
licensed operator, the Uber system identifies 
the best placed licensed partner-driver for the 
rider. When an available licensed 
partner-driver and vehicle has been identified, 
UBL accepts the booking, logs the booking 
on the system and allocates the booking to 
that partner-driver. 
 

How do you ensure the triple lock licensing 
rule is observed? i.e. driver, vehicle and 
operator are all licensed by the same 
licensing authority 

Each driver and vehicle is identifiable by their 
relevant licence. Only drivers and vehicles 
licensed by the same authority are able to 
receive bookings made via the app and 
booking records clearly delineate between 
vehicles/drivers from different authorities. 

How does a passenger know which licensing Uber’s terms and conditions for passengers 

                       
                       

 
2 
 

APPENDIX A

Page 41



 
 

authority licences the driver and vehicle? the “Rider Terms”) state, at paragraph 3, 
that: 
 
“You should  be  aware that the Transportation 

Provider  to which your PHV Booking is 

allocated and  who  provides the 

Transportation Services may be  licensed  in 

an  area other than where the booking  is 

requested or the Transportation Services are 

provided.” 

In many cases, the relevant authority is 
clearly displayed on livery, but if riders require 
this information after the trip has concluded, 
they can enquire quickly and easily through 
our in-app support, and will typically receive a 
response from our dedicated Support Team 
within a few hours. 

What information is given to the passenger? Riders booking through the Uber app will 
receive (via the app): 

● The driver’s first name; 
● The driver’s photo; 
● The vehicle’s make; 
● The vehicle’s model; 
● The vehicle’s registration; 
● The vehicle’s colour; and 
● The ETA of the driver. 

 
 
 
 
I am at your disposal if you have any questions. 
  
Yours faithfully, 

Frederick Jones 
Head of Cities¸ UK and Ireland, Uber 
Enc. 

                       
                       

 
3 
 

APPENDIX A

Page 42



ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 
PO BOX 700 
CAMBRIDGE, CB1 0JH 
 
Tel: 01223 457888        
E-mail: Taxi@Cambridge.gov.uk  
 
L11 

 
 

 
 
    
                          

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
This licence is subject to the provisions of, and the byelaws made under the Town Police 

Clauses Act 1847; the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976; the 
Transport Act 1985; the Conditions enacted by Cambridge City Council. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Please read conditions on reverse 
 

Licence Fee: £150.00 Receipt No: 07936 Date Paid: 23rd November 2016 
 

6th December 2016  WK/201636635 
 

PRIVATE HIRE OPERATORS LICENCE 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

 
                             Company Name: Uber Britannia Ltd  
   

Compass House , Vision Park, Chivers Way, Histon, Cambridge, 
CB24 9AD 

 
 

Licence Number:PHO080 
 

     Start Date: 21st December 2016          End Date: 20th December 2017 
 

 

Proprietor(s) Name Only 

 
Thomas Elvidge 

Number of Vehicles:1 

 

 
Authorised Officer 

 
 

Authorised Officer 
 

APPENDIX B

Page 43

mailto:Taxi@Cambridge.gov.uk


 

PRIVATE HIRE OPERATOR – LICENCE CONDITIONS 
 
 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
 
 
1. Records 
 

The records required to be kept by the operator under Section 56(2) of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 shall be kept in a suitable book, the 
pages of which are numbered consecutively. 

 
The records to be kept by the operator shall contain details of all Private Hire Vehicles 
operated by him, including the names and addresses of the owners and drivers, 
registration numbers and drivers of the vehicles, together with any radio call sign used. 

 
 
2. Complaints 
 

The operator shall immediately upon receipt notify the Council in writing of any 
complaints concerning a contract for hire or purported contract for hire relating to or 
arising from his business and of the action (if any), which the operator has taken or 
proposes to take in respect thereof. 

 
 
3. Change of Address 
 

The operator shall notify the Council in writing of any change of his address during the 
period of the licence within 7 days of such change taking place. 

 
 
4. Convictions 
 

The operator shall within 7 days disclose to the Council in writing details of any 
conviction imposed on him (or if the operator is a company, on any of its directors) 
during the period of the licence. 

 
 
 

Failure to comply with the conditions of this Licence may result in disciplinary action 
 
 

APPENDIX B

Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



APPENDIX D

Page 47



APPENDIX D

Page 48



APPENDIX D

Page 49



APPENDIX D

Page 50



APPENDIX D

Page 51



APPENDIX D

Page 52



APPENDIX D

Page 53



APPENDIX D

Page 54



APPENDIX D

Page 55



APPENDIX D

Page 56



APPENDIX D

Page 57



APPENDIX D

Page 58



APPENDIX D

Page 59



APPENDIX D

Page 60



APPENDIX D

Page 61



APPENDIX D

Page 62



APPENDIX D

Page 63



APPENDIX D

Page 64



APPENDIX D

Page 65



APPENDIX D

Page 66



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 E

Page 67

lukec
Sticky Note



This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

Page 69



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

Page 70



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

Page 71



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

Page 72



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

Page 73



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

Page 74



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

Page 75



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

Page 76



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

Page 77



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

Page 78



Barnardo’s Training - Presentation 

 

 

SLIDE  1 

 

APPENDIX G

Page 79



 

SLIDE  2 

APPENDIX G

Page 80



 

 

SLIDE  3 

APPENDIX G

Page 81



 

 

SLIDE  4 

APPENDIX G

Page 82



 

SLIDE  5 

APPENDIX G

Page 83



 

SLIDE  6 

 

SLIDE  7 

APPENDIX G

Page 84



 

SLIDE  8 

 

SLIDE  9: 

APPENDIX G

Page 85



 

SLIDE  10 

 

SLIDE  11 

APPENDIX G

Page 86



 

SLIDE  12 

 

SLIDE  13 

APPENDIX G

Page 87



 

SLIDE  14 

 

SLIDE  15 

APPENDIX G

Page 88



 

SLIDE  16 

 

SLIDE  17 

APPENDIX G

Page 89



 

SLIDE  18 

 

SLIDE  19 

APPENDIX G

Page 90



SLIDE  20 

 

SLIDE  21 

 

APPENDIX G

Page 91



 

SLIDE  21 

 

 

SLIDE  21 

 

APPENDIX G

Page 92



 

SLIDE  22 

 

 

SLIDE  23 

 

APPENDIX G

Page 93



 

SLIDE  24 

 

SLIDE  25 

APPENDIX G

Page 94



 

SLIDE  26 

 

SLIDE  27 

APPENDIX G

Page 95



 

SLIDE  28 

 

SLIDE  29 

APPENDIX G

Page 96



SLIDE  30

 

SLIDE  31 

 

SLIDE  32 

APPENDIX G

Page 97



 

SLIDE  33:  

 

SLIDE  34: 

APPENDIX G

Page 98



 

SLIDE  35 

 

SLIDE  36 

 

APPENDIX G

Page 99



 

SLIDE  37 

 

SLIDE  38 

APPENDIX G

Page 100



 

SLIDE  39 

 

SLIDE  40 

APPENDIX G

Page 101



 

SLIDE  41 

 

 

SLIDE  42 

APPENDIX G

Page 102



 

SLIDE  43 

 

SLIDE  44 

APPENDIX G

Page 103



 

SLIDE  45 

 

SLIDE  46 

APPENDIX G

Page 104



 

SLIDE  47 

 

 

SLIDE  48 

APPENDIX G

Page 105



 

SLIDE  49 

SLIDE  50 

APPENDIX G

Page 106



 

SLIDE  51 

 

SLIDE  52 

APPENDIX G

Page 107



 

SLIDE  53 

 

SLIDE  54 

APPENDIX G

Page 108



 

SLIDE  55 

 

SLIDE  56 

APPENDIX G

Page 109



 

SLIDE  57 

 

SLIDE  58 

APPENDIX G

Page 110



 

SLIDE  59 

 

SLIDE  60 

APPENDIX G

Page 111



 

SLIDE  61 

 

 

CERTIFICATE 

APPENDIX G

Page 112



 

 

 

 

Summarised  changes: 

 

- Slide 2: Change to “taxi and private  hire drivers”.  
- Slide 3: Change to “as a taxi or private  hire driver” 
- Slide 4: Change to  “to a colleague manager  or friend”  
- Slide 8: Change to “when does your  responsibility as a taxi or private hire driver begin?” 

FLAGGING  FOR LEGAL  - would this responsibility change  between taxi vs private hire given 

that  PH are  pre-booked? 

- Slide 12: Change taxi to “vehicle” 
- Slide 15: Change taxi to “vehicle” - same  flag for legal as above  about  responsibility for 

passenger.  

- Slide 16: Change taxi to “taxi or private  hire vehicle”.  
- Slide 23: Change to “when they get in or out of  taxi or private  hire vehicle” 

- Slide 32: Change to “If  a person  will  hit someone  else in front of  you…” - what matters  is if 
they hit another  person,  regardless  of  whether it’s a woman  or not.  

- Slide 41: Change taxi to “vehicle” 
- Slide 44: Change to “taxi or private hire driver” 
- Slide 45: Change to “getting into a taxi or private hire vehicle” 
- Slide 46: Change taxi to “vehicle” 
- Slide 47 and 48: Private Hire drivers do not keep log books (this is only relevant to taxi 

drivers). As such, could we amend all wording to “note  down details”  

APPENDIX G

Page 113



- Slide 50: Change to “taxi or private hire driver”; Change to: “the person  gets into your  taxi or 

private hire vehicle”  
- Slide 53: Change to “Taxi or private hire driver” 
- Slide 54: Change from  taxi to “vehicle” 
- Slide 55:  Change to “Taxi or private hire driver” 
- Slide 59: Change to “Taxi and private  hire drivers” 
- Certificate: Change to “Safeguarding  - Taxi and  Private  Hire Service” 

 

APPENDIX G

Page 114



Partner-Driver 
Name Ticket Created At Verbatim Complaint Complaint summary Uber Action taken

2017-10-28 0:00:00 "Reason for adjustment: The route was longer than necessary" Inefficient route

We concluded that fare is 
correct so no adjustment 
necessary

2017-10-28 0:00:00 "Driver did not end trip after drop-off and we had to cancel when he kept going."
MIstimed trip (Driver did not end trip at 
destination) Adjusted fare

2017-09-14 0:00:00

What Was Your Intended Pickup Location?: Cambridge station

Where Was Your Driver Waiting?: He didn't arrive at promised time

Share Details: I ordres a taxi and it didn't arrive. I had to cancel it because it started raining and I couldn't wait any more. The 
initial waiting time also jumped from 4m to 5m and then froze. I feel either the app sa cheating me or the driver shouldn't have 
accepted the request that he couldn't make. Refund please." Rider unhappy with wait time Reimbursed with credits

2017-08-04 0:00:00

"I requested an Uber this morning to in Cambridge. The driver went to the wrong city, called and told me where 
he was, then cancelled me and told me to order another Uber. And he charged me a 4 GBP cancellation fee. I repeated the 
request to Uber. The second Uber came to the correct address and took me to my destination. I don't believe I should be 
charged a cancellation fee when your driver goes to the wrong place." Driver cancelled- rider charged Reimbursed with credits

2017-08-03 0:00:00 "Reason for cancellation: My driver cancelled" Driver cancelled- rider charged Reimbursed with credits
2017-07-24 0:00:00 "Reason for cancellation: My driver cancelled" Driver cancelled- rider charged Reimbursed with credits
2017-07-14 0:00:00 "The app showed that the driver is here but when I called he said he's stopping someone else and it would take him 20 mins" Driver cancelled- rider charged Reimbursed with credits

2017-07-10 0:00:00

"Apart from almost being runt over cause he stopped in diagonal in middle of the road. He completely denied I could know the 
way and took a detour through back road taking longer than a usual trip with abusive comments. Absolutely not the way you 
want to get treated. I was already late so couldn't get down but possibly one of the worst trips in my life" Inefficient route Reimbursed with credits

2017-07-06 0:00:00

Item Description: Wallet red

Share Details: Seat

Do You Give Uber Permission To Share Your Phone Number With Your Driver?: Yes

Enter The Best Phone Number To Reach You.: Lost item
Passed on contact details to 
driver to organised pickup

2017-06-08 0:00:00

"My driver literally stopped to let everyone pass first. If I wanted to be late for my doctors appointment I would've taken a bus 
and not an uber. At one point he stopped in the middle of mill rd to let someone cross the road and they're not even on any 
crossing at all. After that I told him if he could drive quicker because I'm about to miss my appointment and he replied. "There's 
no traffic so we should be there on time." This is probably one of the worst uber rides I've had. Please can you tell him to stop 
letting every car to pull out of the road. They're not the priority the customers are the priority. I would like to get a refund for this 
ride." Slow driving

Apologised and explained 
safety is most important

2017-06-04 0:00:00

"I have to report this driver for being exceptionally rude, racist, driving me to the wrong location, and claiming that its my fault as 
opposed to driving to the adress I provided. Totally unprofessional and its disturbing that people like that are on the Uber 
system. Arguing with customers is anything but professional."

Alleged rude and racist behaviour / 
wrong destination

Refunded rider and advised 
driver against this behaviour

2017-05-20 0:00:00

 

Driver cancelled- rider charged Reimbursed with credits

2017-05-18 0:00:00
"
Translation: "Reason for cancellation: My driver cancelled" Driver cancelled- rider charged Reimbursed with credits

2017-05-08 0:00:00
"It quoted 22 minutes for a pickup so I thought I hadn't accepted it and made other arrangements. If I'd realised I hadn't 
cancelled I would have done so immediately" Driver cancelled- rider charged Refunded rider

2017-04-28 0:00:00 "Drove up to us and left" Driver cancelled
Explained cancellation fee 
not charged

2017-04-21 0:00:00 "We left the car at 11:01 but have been charged until 11:19. Please provide a refund for the excess time."
MIstimed trip (Driver did not end trip at 
destination) Adjusted fare

2017-03-12 0:00:00

Item Description: Black wallet

Share Details: In a back seat Lost item
Advised to reach out to 
driver

2017-03-01 0:00:00 "I have been billed for a number of trips, including this one, which I never took."
Rider alleges they were charged for trips 
they did not take

Advised that trips have not 
been flagged as fraudulent 
and to check with family and 
friends

2017-02-01 0:00:00 "I missed my classes , because of long drive" Inefficient route Apologised to rider

APPENDIX H

P
age 115



Partner-Driver 
Name Ticket Created At Verbatim Complaint Complaint summary Uber Action taken

2017-01-27 0:00:00

"Refused destination at first due to wanting to pick up someone else, and refused to stop where I wanted to pick up a friend of 
mines due the same reason. Very poor and unprofessional service. At least he should be fine with leaving me in my destination. 
Instead he asked me if he could leave me somewhere close" Pickup/destination refusal

Asked for further info- did 
not hear back

2017-01-27 0:00:00

"Driver insisted to get coins from a place he knows as he didnt have coins to pay drop off fee at Stansted. I suggested him to 
pay with card or deal with it once we arrive airport but he didnt change mind. This resulted in we travelled unnecessary miles to 
North of CAMB and wasted some 20 min. Pls review" Inefficient route Adjusted fare

2017-01-25 0:00:00 "I had invite ppl and got free rides... why are they not applying to these rides???!?" Referral promotion query
Asked for more details- did 
not hear back

2017-01-04 0:00:00

"I just wanted to know why this journey cost me more then if I had taken a regular taxi? I found the same to be true previously in 
united kingdom when I took an Uber l from shinley station. I wanted an official reply from Uber before I share this finding with 
those in my  village forum."

Rider unhappy with journey cost 
compared to taxis Explained our fare structure

2016-12-10 0:00:00 " Inefficient route Adjusted fare

APPENDIX H

P
age 116



APPENDIX I – Potential Conditions to add to any 
licence granted 
 
 

1. Potential new Operator condition: 
 
“Uber Britannia Limited must not use ‘Greyball’ technology for the purposes of 
avoiding regulatory or law enforcement activity in connection with its 
Cambridge City Council operator licence” 

 

2. Potential new Operator condition: 
 

“Uber Britannia Limited must report to the Council any allegation or complaint 
relating to certain serious behaviours, specifically: 

- Sexual misconduct 
- Violence 
- Aggressive or rude behaviour 
- Discrimination 
- Theft 
- Plying for hire 

Upon receiving any allegation or complaint relating to the above serious 
behaviours the Operator must take reasonable steps to restrict the driver’s 
access to the App within 24 hours and whilst any investigation is ongoing. All 
complaints will be reported by the Operator to the Council within 72 hours of 
receiving the complaint.” 

 
3. Potential new Operator condition: 

 
“When a booking is made under Uber Britannia Limited’s Cambridge City 
Council operating licence, the booking confirmation and receipt provided to a 
passenger will identify that the driver is licensed by Cambridge City Council.” 

 

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX J

Page 119



APPENDIX J

Page 120



APPENDIX J

Page 121



APPENDIX J

Page 122



APPENDIX J

Page 123



APPENDIX J

Page 124



APPENDIX J

Page 125



APPENDIX J

Page 126



APPENDIX J

Page 127



APPENDIX J

Page 128



APPENDIX J

Page 129



APPENDIX J

Page 130



APPENDIX K

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Private Hire Operators Licence Renewal Application
	Appendix A - Application Form
	Appendix B - Current PHO Licence
	Appendix C - TfL decision
	Appendix D - Inspection Form
	Appendix E - Staff list
	Appendix F - Presentation given to drivers
	Appendix G - Barnardo's Safeguarding Training
	Appendix H - Complaint details
	Appendix I - Potential Conditions that could be added to licence
	Appendix J - Reposnses to renewal application
	Appendix K - Email regarding Data Breach




